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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
___________________________________

CIN No: L80301MH1984PLC033922
Registered Office: B-3, Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West,

Mumbai – 400 064.
Tel.: 022-61056800 / 01 / 02 Fax: 022-61056803 Email: vjtfho@vjtf.com

Website: www.vjtf.com / www.wittykidsindia.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting of VJTF Eduservices Limited
will be held at the Registered Office at Witty International School Building , Pawan Baug
Road, Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064 on Tuesday, 29th December, 2020 at 05:00 P.M., to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider, and adopt:

1. Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March,
2020, the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors  thereon; and

2. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2020.

3. Ratification of the Statutory Auditor of M/s J. Kala & Associates (Firm
Registration No. 118769W) for the Financial Year 2020-2021.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1. Appointment of Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN: 08881097) as an Independent Director
of the Company for a term of 5 years.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) for the time being in force and
Regulation 25 of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations,
2015, Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN: 08881097), who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors w.e.f. 15th September, 2020 as per
the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and who holds Office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing,
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, pursuant to provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, being eligible for appointment to the office of Director, be and
is hereby appointed as an “Independent Director” of the Company, not liable to retire
by rotation at the AGM of the Company, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years up to the conclusion of the 40th AGM of the Company.
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2. Re-appointment of Dr. Vinay Jain (DIN- 00235276) as the Managing Director of
the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, 197, 198 and 203
read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act
2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) and subject to such other approvals, permissions and actions, as may be
required, and subject to such conditions and modifications, as may be prescribed or
imposed by any of the Authorities in granting such approvals, permissions and
sanctions, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment
of Dr. Vinay Jain as the Managing Director of the Company for a period till 30th

September, 2023 on the terms and conditions as specified in the agreement entered into
between the Company and the said appointee inter-alia covering the following basic
features:

a. Tenure of appointment till 30th September, 2023.

b. Functions: Dr. Vinay Jain shall be responsible for looking after the day-to-day business
and affairs related to Activities of the Company.

c. Remuneration: Remuneration shall be paid as per the Agreement entered into with Dr.
Vinay Jain i.e. 5,00,000/- per month and other terms and conditions specified in the
said agreement.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised
to vary, alter, increase, enhance or widen the scope of remuneration and perquisites
with the requisite approvals as may be required.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution,
any director of the Company be authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as
they may in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle
any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard and to sign and execute
all necessary documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary,
proper, desirable or expedient.”

3. Re-appointment of Dr. Raina Vinay Jain (DIN- 01142103) as the Whole Time
Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, 197, 198 and 203
read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act
2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) and subject to such other approvals, permissions and actions, as may be
required, and subject to such conditions and modifications, as may be prescribed or
imposed by any of the Authorities in granting such approvals, permissions and
sanctions, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment
of Dr. Raina Vinay Jain as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a period till
30th September, 2023 on the terms and conditions as specified in the agreement entered
into between the Board of Directors of the Company and the said appointee inter-alia
covering the following basic features:

a. Tenure of appointment till 30th September, 2023.

b. Functions: Dr. Raina Vinay Jain shall be responsible for looking after the day-to-day
business and affairs related to Activities of the Company.

c. Remuneration: Remuneration shall be paid as per the Agreement entered into with Dr.
Raina Vinay Jain i.e. 5,00,000/- per month and other terms and conditions specified in
the said agreement.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised
to vary, alter, increase, enhance or widen the scope of remuneration and perquisites
with the requisite approvals as may be required.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution,
any director of the Company be authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as
they may in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle
any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard and to sign and execute
all necessary documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary,
proper, desirable or expedient.”

By Order of the Board
For VJTF Eduservices Limited

Place: Mumbai Sd/- Sd/-
Dated: 07th December, 2020 Dr. Vinay Jain Dr. Raina Jain

Managing Director Whole Time Director
(DIN: 00235276) (DIN: 01142103)
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NOTES:

1. The Register of Members will be closed from 23rd December, 2020 to 29th December, 2020 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on
his behalf and such proxy / proxies need not be a member of the Company. Person can act as proxy on
behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company.

3. Proxy forms in order to be effective must be received at Registered Office of the Company situated at
B-3, Witty International School building , Pawan Baug Road, Malad West, Mumbai-400064, 48 hours
before the Annual General Meeting.

4. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and
ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at
any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in
writing is given to the Company.

5. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Report and Accounts to the Meeting.

6. Members who hold shares in the Dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID
numbers for easy identification of attendance at the 35th Annual General Meeting. Also they are
required to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details such as bank account number, name of
the bank and branch details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney,
change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their depository
participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s
records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Skyline
Financial Services Pvt Ltd to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in physical
form are requested to intimate such changes to the RTA.

7. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the
order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

8. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 35th AGM is annexed to the Annual Report.

9. A copy of all the documents referred to in the accompanying explanatory statement are open to
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except public holidays
between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the date of AGM.

10. Members are requested to affix their signatures at the space provided on the Attendance Slip annexed
to the Proxy Form and hand over the Slip at the entrance to the place of the Meeting.

11. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly
certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM.

12. The Company has made necessary arrangements for the Members to hold their shares in dematerialized
form. Those members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize the same
by approaching any of the Depository Participants (DPs). In case any member wishes to dematerialize
his/her shares and needs any assistance, he/she may write to the Director at the registered office of the
Company.

13. Copies of Annual Report 2020 are being sent to the members in the permitted mode.

14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants(s).
Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN details to the Company / RTA.

6 of 142



15. Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 40228) an
Independent Professional has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the E-voting process in a
fair and transparent manner (including the Ballot Form received from the members who do not have
access to the e-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner.

16. The Results of E-voting shall be declared at the AGM of the Company and the results along with
Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company thereafter and shall also be
communicated to the Stock Exchanges. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed, if approved, on
or before the date of 31st December, 2020.

17. Important Communiqué to Members-Green Initiative in Corporate Governance :

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a Green Initiative in Corporate Governance by
allowing paperless compliances by the companies and has issued a Circular stating that service of all
documents can be sent by e-mail to its Members. Our Company believes that this is a remarkable and
environment friendly initiative by MCA and requests all members to support in this noble cause.

The Company has already embarked on this initiative and proposes to send documents in electronic
form to the Members on the email address provided by them to the RTA/Depositories.

The Members who hold shares in physical from are requested to intimate/update their email address to
the Company / RTA while Members holding shares in demat form can intimate / update their email
address to their respective Depository Participants.
Members are requested to further note that they will be entitled to be furnished, free of cost, the
physical copy of the documents sent by e-mail, upon receipt of a requisition from them, any time, as a
Member of the Company.

18. PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING:

Voting through electronic means:

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Amendments thereto, the Company is
pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote at the 35th Annual General Meeting
(AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by
Central Depository Services (India) limited (CDSL). The Company has signed an agreement with
CDSL for facilitating such e-Voting by the Members.

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(iv) Click on Shareholders.

(v) Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
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(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8
digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.

 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of
0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL
letters. E.g. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter
RA00000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank Details
OR Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in
your demat account or in the Company records in order to login.

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company please enter
the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in
instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It
is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant VJTF Eduservices Limited on which you choose to vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

8 of 142



(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to

log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to

verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or

write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

By Order of the Board
For VJTF Eduservices Limited

Place: Mumbai Sd/- Sd/-
Dated: 07th December, 2020 Dr. Vinay Jain Dr. Raina Jain

Managing Director Whole Time Director
(DIN: 00235276) (DIN: 01142103)
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NOTES:

ANNEXURE-1 TO THE NOTICE: EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION
102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACTS, 2013.

The following Explanatory Statement sets out the material facts relating to the business under item 3,
4 & 5 of the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 1:

Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN: 08881097) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f.
15th September, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
to hold office up to the date of the 35th Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice
in writing from member proposing the candidature of Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN: 08881097), for the
office of Director pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, Independent Directors are not
liable to retire by rotation and are required to be appointed by Shareholders.

Therefore, it is proposed to appoint Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN: 08881097), as an Independent Director of
the Company for a term of five consecutive years up to the conclusion of 40th AGM of the Company.
Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN: 08881097), is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as Director of the Company. The Company
has also received declarations from him that he meets with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act & SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations, 2015.

His brief profile along with other details as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided in the Annexure -2 of this Notice. The Board considers
that Mr. Sourabh Jain (DIN: 08881097), will adhere to the standards & provisions laid down under
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as an
Independent Director. Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out in the
Item No. 3 of the Notice for your approval.

Item No. 2 & 3:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 30th May, 2019 have Re- appointed Dr. Vinay
Jain as the Managing Director of the Company and Dr. Raina Vinay Jain as the Whole Time Director
of the Company for a period till 30th September, 2023 on the remuneration of Rs. 5,00,000/- per
month to be paid after obtaining approval of members in the coming AGM as per the requirements of
Companies Act, 2013. The remuneration to be paid to Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Vinay Jain falls
under Section II of Part II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the disclosure
as required under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 is given hereunder:

A. General Information:

Nature of Industry Education
Date or expected date of Commercial Production N.A. since the Company has already commenced

its business activities
In case of new Companies, expected date of
commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus

N.A.
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B. Financial performance:
(In Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year Ended
on March 31, 2018

Financial Year Ended
on March 31, 2019

Financial Year Ended
on March 31, 2020

Total Income 2318.21 1908.83 1863.66
Depreciation 108.23 119.47 392.31
Net Profit/(Loss) 135.16 (87.61) (457.92)
Paid up Capital 1760 1760 1760
Reserves & Surplus 592.08 511.49 58.16

C. Information about the Appointees

Information required under Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 (SS-2) with respect to the Directors
seeking appointment/re- appointment is as under Dr. Vinay Dharamchand Jain and Dr. Raina Vinay
Jain the Managing Director and Whole time Director of the company respectively are re-appointed
w.e.f 23rd September, 2019 up to 30th September, 2023.

Annexure 2

Name of Director Dr. Vinay Dharamchand Jain Dr. Raina Vinay Jain Mr. Sourabh Jain

DIN 00235276 01142103 08881097

Fathers Name Mr. Dharamchand Rajmal Shah Mr. Haresh N Mehta Mr. Sourabh Jain

Date of Birth 10/03/1976 09/09/1975 17/02/1997

Age 44 Years 45 Years 23 Years

Date of First
appointment on the

Board

28/02/2013 28/02/2013 15/09/2020

Qualification BHMS BHMS Graduate

Experience Dr. Vinay Jain is a merit ranker
medical graduate, a successful

first generation entrepreneur and a
renowned educationist widely

recognized for his contribution in
the education sector having

experience of 22 years

Dr. Raina Vinay Jain is a merit
ranker medical graduate, a
successful first generation

entrepreneur and a renowned
educationist widely recognized

for her contribution in the
education sector having
experience of 21 years.

Nil

Terms & conditions
for Appointment
/reappointment

As per the Companies
Act, 2013

As per the Companies
Act, 2013

As per the Companies
Act, 2013

Details of
Remuneration

As discussed and agreed by board As discussed and agreed by
board

NA

Remuneration last
drawn

Rs. 5,00,000/- per month Rs. 5,00,000/- per month Nil

Shareholding in the
Company

34.53% 29.42% Nil
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D. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of Company, profile of the position
and person: The Education sector in India is poised at a crucial stage in its growth due to COVID-
19 pandemic. India’s demographic advantage of having a large population of youth, coupled with
low gross enrolment ratios, presents a huge opportunity to education sector players. At the same
time, the growth of the Indian economy and upward movement of income levels is boosting spend
on Education, which already accounts for the second-highest share of wallet for middle-class
households. Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Vinay Jain have successfully proved their expertise in
very effective manner and drove the Company towards the growth over the period of time. Hence,
the Board of Directors considers that the remuneration proposed to them are justified and
commensurate with other organizations of the similar type, size and nature in the Education
industry.

E. Other information:

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits: The Company’s Planning Expansion, for which established
New Schools and which Incurred heavy cost. Also Infrastructure development for Education and
related activities needs a huge investment and takes time to grow, the Company is growing
continuously with its new projects at various places. Your management expects that with the
introduction of new projects, there will a significant improvement in profitability of the Company.

.
F. Other Disclosures:

The details of remuneration payable to Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Vinay Jain and the terms and
conditions of the re-appointment are given below:

1. Elements of Salary/Remuneration:
Basic Salary- Rs. 250,000/-
Other allowances- Rs. 250,000/-

2. Variable components of Remuneration: NA

3. Service Contract, Notice Period, Severance fees: Dr. Vinay Jain was appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company and Dr. Raina Vinay Jain as the Whole Time Director of the Company
for a term upto 30th September, 2023 on terms and conditions are as per the Agreement executed
between company and the said directors.

4. Stock Option Detail: NA The above resolution for Re-appointment of Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina
Vinay Jain and their managerial remuneration is being put before the members for their approval.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel including their relatives is concerned or
interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolution. The Board recommends the Special
Resolution as set out in the Item No. 4 & 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For VJTF Eduservices Limited

Place:  Mumbai Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 07th December, 2020 Dr. Vinay Jain Dr. Raina Jain

Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN- 00235276 DIN-01142103
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 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh 

A ASSETS

1    NON CURRENT ASSETS
       a) Property,Plant and Equipment 2 3,325.59                     774.93                               
       b) Goodwill on Amalgamation 936.53                        936.53                               
       c) Financial Assets

i. Investments
a)Investment in Subsidiary and Associate 3 (i) 795.95                        795.95                               
b) Other Investments 3 (ii) 0.92                            0.92                                   

ii. Other Financial Assets 4 1,890.00                     1,472.56                            
       d)  Deferred Tax Asset (net) 5 -                              12.03                                 
       e)  Income Tax Asset (net) 6 17.22                          9.58                                   
       f) Other Non-Current Assets 7 -                              352.94                               

6,966.21                     4,355.44                            

2    CURRENT ASSETS
       a) Financial Assets

i.  Trade Receivables 8 8.05                            2.04                                   
ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 44.01                          55.46                                 
iii.  Loans 10 1,309.44                     1,042.88                            
iv.  Other Financial Assets 11 314.49                        313.44                               

       b) Other Current Assets 12 10.85                          142.66                               
1,686.84                     1,556.48                            

TOTAL 8,653.05                     5,911.92                            

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1    EQUITY 
       a) Equity Share Capital 13 1,760.00                     1,760.00                            
       b) Other Equity 14 58.16                          511.49                               

2    LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
       a)  Financial Liabilities

    Borrowings 15 605.96                        774.75                               
              Other Financial Liabilities 16 2,657.95                     60.79                                 
       b)  Provisions 17 26.97                          17.98                                 
       c)  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 29.78                          -                                     

3,320.67                     853.52                               

CURRENT LIABILITIES
       a)  Financial Liabilities

i.   Borrowings 18 354.99                        1,062.13                            
ii. Trade Payables 19 143.30                        91.43                                 
iii.Other Financial Liabilities 20 1,088.85                     342.50                               

       b)  Other Current Liabilities 21 1,926.51                     1,283.97                            
       c)  Provisions 22 0.58                            6.88                                   

3,514.22                     2,786.90                            

TOTAL 8,653.05                     5,911.92                            

Summary of significant Accounting policies 1
The accompany notes from an internal part of the Financial 
statements 1-45

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
          Sd/- DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN SHRUTI SHARMA

VAIBHAV PATODI DIRECTOR DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY

PARTNER DIN No. 00235276    DIN No. 01142103 Membership No.A52723

Membership No. 420935

PLACE :  MUMBAI
DATE : 31st July, 2020

BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 PARTICULARS  NOTES 
 AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2020 
 AS AT 

31ST MARCH, 2019 
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 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh

I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 23 1,452.95 1,618.41
Other Income 24 410.71 290.42

TOTAL INCOME 1,863.66 1,908.83

II EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 25 535.45 548.43
Finance Costs 26 696.18 398.88
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 392.31 119.47
Other Expenses 27 651.34 927.59

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,275.28 1,994.37

III Loss Before Tax (I-II) (411.62) (85.54)

IV Tax Expense :
a) Current Tax - 4.75
b) Prior Period Taxation Adjustments 6.10 10.71
c) MAT Credit (Entitlement)/Reversal 38.89 (4.75)
d) Deferred Tax 1.31 (8.65)

46.30 2.06

V Loss for the year (III-IV) (457.92) (87.60)

VI Other Comprehensive Income
a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
        Re-measurement Gain on defined benefit plans 6.21 9.48
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items (1.61) (2.47)
b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss - -
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items - -

4.60 7.01

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) (453.32) (80.59)

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (in Rs.) (2.60) (0.50)
 (nominal value of Equity Share Rs. 10)

  Summary of significant Accounting policies 1
The accompany notes from an internal part of the Financial
statements 1-45

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W

     Sd/-
      Sd/- SHRUTI SHARMA

VAIBHAV PATODI DIRECTOR                 DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
PARTNER DIN No. 00235276      DIN No. 01142103 Membership No.A52723
Membership No. 420935

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE : 31st July, 2020

DR. VINAY JAIN     DR. RAINA JAIN

 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED

31ST MARCH, 2020

 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED

31ST MARCH, 2019

  Sd/-                                       Sd/-

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 PARTICULARS  NOTES

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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PARTICULARS
 FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 
31ST MARCH, 2020 

 FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2019 

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Loss before Tax  (411.62)                         (85.54)                              

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 392.31                          119.47                             

Accrued liability for Gratuity 2.70                              1.92                                 

Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back (2.42)                             (23.24)                              

Sundry Balances written off 1.97                              0.88                                 

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment -                                (2.76)                                

Profit on Lease Termination (66.74)                           -                                   

Interest Income on Loans given (325.22)                         (252.10)                            

Finance Costs 696.18                          398.88                             
287.16                          157.51                             

Movements in Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables (6.01)                             53.21                               
Increase in Financials and other assets (Current & Non-Current) (193.57)                         (356.45)                            
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables, Liabilities and Provisions 1,886.13                       (13.41)                              
Cash flow / (used in) Operations 1,973.71                       (159.14)                            
Income tax paid (Net) (13.74)                           (69.87)                              
Net cash flow/ (used in) Operating Activities 1,959.97                       (229.01)                            

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment (Net) (15.80)                           (285.09)                            
Sale of Investments -                                5.00                                 
Loans Given (266.55)                         (533.34)                            
Loans given received back -                                1,274.44                          

Interest Received on Loans given 325.22                          252.10                             
Net cash flow from Investing Activities 42.87                            713.11                             

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Borrowings 400.00                          940.59                             
Repayment of Borrowings (1,300.12)                      (1,065.97)                         
Payment of lease liabilities (417.65)                         -                                   
Finance Costs paid (696.51)                         (399.61)                            
Net cash flow used in Financing Activities (2,014.28)                      (524.99)                            

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C ) (11.45)                           (40.89)                              

Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 55.46                            96.35                               

44.01                            55.46                               
 Notes : 

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IndAS - 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to this years classification.

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No. 118769W

Sd/-     Sd/-

VAIBHAV PATODI SHRUTI SHARMA

PARTNER DIRECTOR                          DIRECTOR  COMPANY SECRETARY

Membership No. 420935 DIN No. 00235276                DIN No. 01142103 Membership No.A52723

PLACE :  MUMBAI

DATE : 31st July, 2020

VJTF EDU SERVICES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

       Sd/-                                        Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN               DR. RAINA JAIN

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Operating profit before Working Capital changes
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars Rs. in Lakh

As at 31st March, 2018 1,760.00

Increase / Decrease during the year -

As at 31st March, 2019 1,760.00

Increase / Decrease during the year -

As at 31st March, 2020 1,760.00

B. OTHER EQUITY
(Rs. in Lakh)

Other Comprehensive
Income

General
reserve

Retained
earnings

Remeasurement of net
defined benefit plans

As at 31st March, 2018 200.00 339.80 52.28 592.08
Loss for the year - (87.60) - (87.60)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 7.01 7.01

As at 31st March, 2019 200.00 252.20 59.29 511.49
Loss for the year - (457.92) - (457.92)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 4.60 4.60

As at 31st March, 2020 200.00 (205.72) 63.89 58.17

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W

Sd/-
Sd/- SHRUTI SHARMA

VAIBHAV PATODI DIRECTOR                    DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
PARTNER DIN No. 00235276         DIN No. 01142103 Membership No.A52723
Membership No. 420935

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE : 31st July,2020

        Sd/-                                      Sd/-
DR. VINAY JAIN         DR. RAINA JAIN

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Particulars Total
Reserves and surplus

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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1 (A).  CORPORATE INFORMATION:

VJTF Eduservices Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 03rd September, 1984 having registered office at Mumbai.The Company has
established itself as an emerging player in the Education Services Segment. The Company provides services to Operational Education
Projects. The Company also provides required auxiliary / support services to other companies in the Education Sector.

1 (B).  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1.  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting standards) Rules as amended from time to time  and other related provisions of the Act.
The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for the
following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:
(i)   Certain financial assets and liabilities
(ii)  Defined benefit employee plan

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company.

2.  Use of Estimates and judgments:
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make, judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the
financial statements is made relying on these estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the management and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including
expectations of future events) that the management believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from
those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty
The Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. The areas involving critical estimates
or judgments are:

(a) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions
(b) Estimation of fair value of financial instruments
(c) Estimated credit loss of trade receivables
(d) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

3. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-
progress”.

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

4. Intangible assets
Intangible assets (other than goodwill on amalgamation) are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

5.  Investment Property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less
depreciation and impairment if any.

6. Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Property plant and equipment (PPE) and Investment Property
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Act.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

7.  Financial Instruments:
(a) Financial assets:

I. Initial recognition:
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. On initial recognition, a
financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its
transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of
the financial asset.

II. Subsequent measurement:
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:
 - amortised cost
 - fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The above classification is being determined considering the:
 - the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
 - the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

(i) Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business module whose objective is to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial
recognition. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if
any, recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding and by selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income
measured using the Effective Interest Rate method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit
and  Loss
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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

III. Equity instruments:
On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company’s right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

IV. Impairment :
The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at
FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an
individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward looking.

The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade
receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition
of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the
lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12–months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired
financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The
expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial
recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks
since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses
and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no
requirement of impairment testing.

V. Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights
to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement.

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

(b) Financial Liabilities
I. Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. The
Company’s financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.
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II. Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

III. Loans & Borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognized in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.

IV. Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee.

V. De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

VI. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

8.  Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.
(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

9 Cash and Cash equivalents :
Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where
original maturity is three months or less. Outstanding bank overdrafts are adjusted in cash and cash equivalents as they are considered an
integral part of the Company’s cash management.

10 Foreign Currency Transactions:
a) Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are restated at the closing exchange rates. Non monetary items are recorded at the exchange
rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

11 Revenue Recognition :
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which
is the consideration received or receivable, adjusted for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue also
excludes taxes collected from customers. The Company earns revenue primarily from providing educational services.

Income from Services (Educational Activities)
Revenues from services rendered are recognized pro-rata on accrual basis over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered or
performance obligation are satisfied.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due).

Rent
Rental Income is recognised on a time proportion basis as per the contractual obligations agreed with the respective tenant.

Interest
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable and based on
effective interest rate method.

Dividend
Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive the same is established.
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12. Borrowing Cost:
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalized as a part of Cost of that assets, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use
or sale are complete during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

13. Taxes on Income:
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax:
Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between
accounting and tax treatments, and due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities.
Interest and penalties on tax liabilities are provided for in the tax charge. The Company offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on a year
on year basis) where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the
assets and liabilities on net basis.

Deferred tax:
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible
and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements.
Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not
recognised where it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realised in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down
the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay
normal income-tax during the specified period.

14. Employee Benefits:
(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.
(b) Post-employment obligations
The Company has following post-employment plans:
(i) Defined benefit plans such a gratuity and
(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

(i) Defined-benefit plan:
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of defined benefit
obligations at the end of the reporting period less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligations is calculated annually by actuaries
through actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements;
(b) Net interest expense or income
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets.
This cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.
Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from
(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses
(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling
(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling
are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and
employee and pensioner demographics. The Company determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these
assumptions to be in line with best practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts
reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive income and balance sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the
assumptions.

(ii) Defined-contribution plan:
Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or
informal obligation to pay additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees’ provident fund with the
government, superannuation fund and certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance and Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Company’s
payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services that the
payment covers.

15. Leases:
Where the Company is Lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i)                  

(ii)                

(iii)               

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For
these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of
the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less
cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability shown under Other Financial Liabilities and right of use asset is shown in Plant property and equipment as lease Asset (Right of
and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Where the Company is Lessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

16. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an
outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible
or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements.

17. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely dependent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of
the asset over its remaining useful life.

18. Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint-ventures and Associate:
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint-venture and associate are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at each reporting
date.

19. Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net
profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2020 

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019 

 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh 

4     OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Non-Current)
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Security deposits given to

Related parties 1,830.11                    1,459.29                       
Others 59.89                        13.27                            

1,890.00                    1,472.56                       

5     DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred tax liabilities (Refer note below for component and movement) (75.47)                       (72.55)                          
MAT credit entitlement 45.69                        84.58                            

(29.78)                       12.03                            

Component and movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) : (Rs. in Lakh)

 Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

 Financial Assets 
/ Liabilities 

 Unabsorbed 
depreciation 

 Others 

At 31st March, 2018 (199.28)             83.21                  30.11                          7.24                          (78.72)                          
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss 10.80                0.07                    (3.92)                           1.69                          8.64                              
- to other comprehensive income -                   -                      -                              (2.47)                         (2.47)                            

At 31st March, 2019 (188.48)             83.28                  26.19                          6.46                          (72.55)                          
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss (755.58)             721.25                30.71                          2.31                          (1.31)                            
- to other comprehensive income -                   -                      -                              (1.61)                         (1.61)                            

At 31st March, 2020 (944.06)             804.53                56.90                          7.16                          (75.47)                          

6     INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

17.22                        9.58                              

17.22                        9.58                              

7     OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid rent -                            352.94                          

-                            352.94                          

8     TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Due for a period less than six months from the date they became due for payment 8.05                          2.04                              

8.05                          2.04                              

9     CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks:
       On current accounts 23.16                        37.83                            

Cash on hand 20.85                        17.63                            

44.01                        55.46                            

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

 Total Deferred Tax 
Assets / (Liabilities) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Deferred tax for temporary differences attributable to

Particulars

Income Tax Receivable (Net of provision of Rs.45.99 Lakh, As at 31st March, 2019 - Rs. 39.90 Lakhs)
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 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2020 

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019 

 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh 

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

10   LOANS
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Loans and advances (in the nature of Loans) to related parties 1,306.32                    941.02                          
Loans and advance to employees 2.12                          1.86                              
Loans and advances to others 1.00                          100.00                          

1,309.44                    1,042.88                       

11   OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Current)
(Unsecured, Considered Good Unless Otherwise Stated )
Receivable against sale of asset 306.95                       306.95                          
Other receivables

from others* 7.54                          6.49                              

314.49                       313.44                          
*Net of Provision for doubtful advances of Rs. 51.25 Lakhs (As at 31st March, 2018 - Rs. 51.25 Lakhs)

12   OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid stamp duty -                            20.15                            

Prepaid Rent -                            105.49                          

Prepaid Insurance 10.77                        17.02                            

Prepaid Expenses 0.08                          -                               

10.85                        142.66                          

13   EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(A) Authorised
2,000.00                    2,000.00                       

2,000.00                    2,000.00                       

(B) Issued, subscribed and paid up

1,760.00                    1,760.00                       

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,760.00                    1,760.00                       

(C) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Rs. in Lakh Number Rs. in Lakh
At the beginning of the year 17,600,000          1,760.00                      17,600,000                1,760.00                       
Changes during the year -                      -                              -                            -                               
Outstanding at the end of the year 17,600,000          1,760.00                      17,600,000                1,760.00                       

(D) Terms, Rights and Preferences attached to Equity Shares 

(E) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Number  % of holding Number  % of holding 
Vinay Dharamchand Jain 6,078,122           34.53                          6,078,122                  34.53                            
Raina Vinay Jain 5,177,051           29.42                          5,177,051                  29.42                            
Sam Financial Services Private Limited 1,604,649           9.12                            1,604,649                  9.12                              
Badri Baldawa 1,084,995           6.16                            1,084,995                  6.16                              

1,76,00,000 (31st March, 2018 - 1,76,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

2,00,00,000 (31st March, 2018 - 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each

Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Shareholders have right to receive interim dividends declared by the Board of Directors 
and Final dividend  proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the Shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the Shareholders will be entitled in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by them to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, presently there are no such preferential amounts.

The  Shareholders have all other rights as available to equity Shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, as applicable.

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
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 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2020 

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019 

 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh 

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

14   OTHER EQUITY

General reserve 200.00                       200.00                          
Retained earnings (205.72)                     252.19                          
Other comprehensive income 63.89                        59.30                            

58.16                        511.49                          
Nature and purpose of other equity and reserves :

15   BORROWINGS (Non-Current)

Secured
Term Loans from
       Small Business Financial Credit (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) -                            309.99                          
       Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 384.13                       -                               

Vehicle Loans from Banks and NBFCs
(Secured by way of hypothecation of motor vehicles purchased there against)

Kotak Bank 72.89                        187.34                          
HDFC Bank 132.51                       192.52                          

     Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 16.43                        24.48                            

Unsecured
Term Loans from

Kotak Bank -                            60.42                            

605.96                       774.75                          

Rate of Interest ,Details of Security and Term of Repayment of Term Loans 

 Small Business Financial Credit (Non - banking Financial Institution - NBFC)

 Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 

 Vehicle Loans 

Repayable by Rate of Interest Bank Name

April 20th, 2021 8.41%  Kotak Bank 32.37                        101.94                          
January 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 26.10                        55.01                            

June 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 14.42                        30.39                            
February 5th, 2023 8.50%  HDFC Bank 132.51                       192.52                          

205.40                       379.86                          

 Vehicle Loan- Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd.

Kotak bank-Term loan

Carries interest at 15.50% p.a. Previous year. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company and
personally guaranteed by the Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from October, 2015 and ending on September,
2024, however loan has been taken over by Aditya birla finance limited in current year for which refer note below.

Carries interest at 12.50% p.a.. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company and personally
guaranteed by the Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from January, 2020 and ending on September, 2030.

Carries interest at 14.00% p.a..The loan is repayable in 24 monthly installments commencing from April, 2019.

Carries interest at 7.50% p.a.. The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments ending on January, 2023. 

General Reserve: General Reserves are created out of profits and kept aside for general purpose and financial strengthening of the company, they don’t
have any special purpose to fulfill and can be used for any purpose in future. 
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16   OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Lease Obligations*:
     Lease Liabilities 3,008.40                    -                               
     Less: Rent Paid  (417.65)                     -                               
Security Deposits from Employees 67.20                        60.79                            

2,657.95                    60.79                            
*(For details - Refer Note 32 )

17   PROVISIONS (Non-Current)
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 26.97                        17.98                            

                         26.97                             17.98 

18   BORROWINGS (Current)

 Loan from bodies corporate 
related party*                               -                             679.98 
others**                        105.58                           130.00 

 Overdraft from Bank*** 249.41                       252.15                          

                       354.99                        1,062.13 

    *(Rate of interest 11% p.a, Previous year 11% p.a.)
    **(Rate of interest 12% p.a, Previous year 12% p.a.)
    ***(Rate of interest 11.25% p.a, Previous year 11.25% p.a.)

19   TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                            -                               

143.30                       91.43                            

143.30                       91.43                            
 

20   OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Current)

Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* 252.79                       276.96                          
Interest Accrued but not Due 4.68                          5.02                              

 Payable to a Related Party 732.44                       26.65                            
 Lease Liabilities** 49.67                        -                               
Due to Employees 49.27                        33.87                            

1,088.85                    342.50                          

**(For details - Refer Note 32)

21   OTHERS CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Statutory Dues 248.56                       222.28                          
Bank Book overdraft -                            11.94                            

 Payable to a Related Party 564.87                       -                               
 Advance received against sale of assets 15.00                        -                               
Contract Liability* (Fees Received in advance) 1,098.08                    1,049.75                       

*(For details - Refer Note 40 ) 1,926.51                    1,283.97                       

22   PROVISIONS (Current)
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 0.58                          6.88                              

0.58                          6.88                              

*(For details of Securities- Refer Note 15 herein above)

 (Unsecured, Repayable on Demand) 

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 
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 FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2020 

 FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2019 

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh
NOTE 23 :  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Services (Educational Activities) - Refer Note 40

     Course and Other Fees 1,452.95                        1,618.41                  

1,452.95                        1,618.41                  

NOTE 24 : OTHER INCOME
Interest Income on:
        Loans Given 165.48                           142.03                     
        Bank Fixed Deposit 0.32                               0.77                         
       Unwinding of Interest (Income) 159.42                           109.30                     
        Income Tax Refund 0.03                               -                          
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets -                                2.76                         
Profit on Lease Termination 66.74                             -                          
Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back 2.42                               18.09                       
Gratuity provision  no longer required written back -                                5.16                         
Miscellaneous Income 16.30                             12.31                       

410.71                           290.42                     

NOTE 25 :  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 523.01                           532.24                     
Contribution to Provident Fund 2.17                               3.32                         
Gratuity Expense 8.90                               11.40                       
Staff Welfare 1.37                               1.47                         

535.45                           548.43                     

NOTE 26 :  FINANCE COSTS 
Interest Expense on:
      Borrowings 185.65                           227.07                     
      Leased Liability 455.51                           -                          
      Delayed Payment of Statutory dues 13.39                             7.10                         
Other Borrowing Cost:
      Loan Processing Fees 6.45                               1.35                        
      Unwinding of Interest (Expense) 35.18                             163.36                     

696.18                           398.88                     

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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 FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2020 

 FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2019 

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh

NOTE 27:  OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors' Remuneration:

       Audit Fees 4.13                               3.50                         

Advertisement and Publicity 33.36                             6.66                         

Electricity 30.37                             25.32                       

Events and Programmes 3.70                               2.11                         

Filing Fees 0.03                               0.19                         

House Keeping Expenses 21.41                             21.40                       

Insurance 26.36                             18.65                       

Kids Welfare Activities 76.79                             39.50                       

Legal and Professional 40.77                             28.52                       

Office Expenses 99.54                             74.76                       

Postage, Telegram, Telephone and Internet 1.98                               3.34                         

Printing and Stationery 18.09                             5.79                         

Rates and Taxes 23.67                             149.36                     

Rent 2.40                               252.31                     

Repairs and  Maintenance 7.84                               7.07                         

Security Charges 24.67                             16.50                       

Teaching Honorarium 0.28                               5.14                         

Travelling Expenses 15.23                             4.11                         

Vehicle Expenses 163.53                           206.69                     

Water Charges 2.58                               3.94                         

Bank Charges 1.57                               1.48                         

Cafeteria Expenses 48.91                             46.77                       

Sundery balances Written off 1.97                               0.88                         

Miscellaneous Expenses 2.16                               3.60                         

651.34                           927.59                     

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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28

 YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH,

2020

 YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2019

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax - 4.75
Prior Period Taxation Adjustments 6.10 10.71
MAT Credit (Entitlement)/Reversal 38.89 (4.75)
Deferred Tax 1.31 (8.65)
Total tax expense 46.30 2.06

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Profit before income tax expense (411.62) (85.54)
Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 26.00% 26.00%

Tax expenses on profit before tax at the enacted income tax rate (A) (107.02) (22.24)

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (B)
Permanent
Disallowances 3.53 1.85
Prior Period Taxation Adjustments 6.10 10.71
MAT Credit (Entitlement)/Reversal 38.89 (4.75)
Deferred tax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses 40.60 -
Others 64.20 16.50

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) 46.30 2.06

Effective tax rate -11.25% -2.41%

29

(Rs. in lakhs)

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 0.58 26.97 6.88 17.98
Total

Gratuity (Post-employment obligations)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:
(Rs. in lakh)

 Present value
of obligation

Fair value
of plan
assets

 Net amount
(UNFUNDED)

Present value of
obligation

 Fair value of plan
assets

 Net amount
(UNFUNDED)

As at the beginning of
the year 24.86 - 24.86 28.10 - 28.10

Current service cost 7.04 - 7.04 9.24 - 9.24
Past service cost - - - - - -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Employee benefit obligations

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

27.55 24.86

The Company provides for gratuity as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years
are eligible for gratuity. The Company does not fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time
based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the
reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

Income tax expenses
This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible
items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company's tax positions.

Particulars

Particulars

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019
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Interest expense 1.86 1.86 2.16 2.16
Excess provision written
back - - - - -

Total amount
recognized in profit or
loss

8.90 - 8.90 11.40 - 11.40

Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change
in assumptions 2.82 - 2.82 (0.15) - (0.15)

Experience gains (9.03) - (9.03) (9.34) - (9.34)
Total amount
recognised in other
comprehensive income (6.21) - (6.21) (9.48) - (9.48)

Benefit payments - - - (5.16) - (5.16)

As at end of the year 27.55 - 27.55 24.86 - 24.86

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Particulars
Discount rate
Salary growth rate

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities with respect to key assumptions (Rs. in lakh)

 Increase in
assumption

 Decrease in
assumption

 Increase in
assumption  Decrease in assumption

Discount rate 25.91 29.35 23.47 26.37
Salary growth rate 29.28 25.97 26.30 23.50

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 202 (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars
Year 1 0.58
Year 2 0.82
Year 3 3.97
Year 4 1.05
Year 5 1.13
Thereafter 7.39
The average outstanding term of the obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 13.67 years.

30 Global Health Pandemic from COVID – 19 (“Covid – 19”)

31 Contingent liabilities:  AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

Disputed Income Tax matters 39.33 1.58
Corporate Guarantees/Securities given 25,017.35 25,017.35

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

Covid-19 have been declared as a global pandemic, the Indian Government has declared the complete lock down since March 24, 2020 and the
same is continuing with minor exemptions and essential services were allowed to operate with limited capacity.The nationwide lockdown due to
spread of COVID-19 and other significant restrictions had an impact on the education sector as well. The campuses were non-operational during
the lockdown period. However, the students were being serviced through online mode of teaching.Based on the facts and circumstances, there is
no major impact on the business of the Company. The Company is closely monitoring any material changes on a continuous basis.

There are no pending litigations against the company, except as stated above. The Company reviews all its litigations and proceedings and
makes adequate provisions, wherever required and discloses the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements.

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019

0.50%
0.50%

 Change in assumption by

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019
6.85% 7.75%

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020

5.00% 5.00%

Particulars
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32 Leases

(Rs. in Lakh)
-

4,077.69
(1,201.48)

(199.10)
2,677.11

(Rs. in Lakh)
3,776.37

-
455.51

(1,173.81)
417.65

2,640.42
49.67

2,590.75

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

Not later than one year 124.20 160.00
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,193.10 724.00
Later than five years 7,596.43 3,848.11
Total 8,913.73 4,732.11

Effective 1st April, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using modified retrospective approach, as a result of which
comparative information are not required to be restated. The Company’s lease asset primarily consists of leases for buildings. These leases were
classified as “Operating Leases” under Ind AS 17. On transition to Ind AS 116 “Leases”, for these leases, lease liabilities were measured at the
present value of remaining lease payments, discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate as at1stApril, 2019. Right to Use is
measured at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.

The Company has used following practical expedient, when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under Ind
AS 17.

The difference between the lease commitments recorded, as of 31st March 2019, under Ind AS 17 and the value of the lease liabilitiesas of 1st
April, 2019, is on account of use of practical hindsight in determining the lease term, where the contract contained options toextend or terminate
the lease in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease liabilities to the present value under Ind AS
116.

Particulars

Deletions

Interest accrued during the year

(i) Break-up of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 st March, 2020 on an undiscounted basis: :

Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as on March 31, 2020

Amortisation cost
Balance as on March 31, 2020

(a)   The Company didn’t recognise Right to Use and Lease liabilities for lease for which the lease terms ends within 12 months on the date of
initial transition and low value assets

(b)   The Company excluded initial direct cost from measurement of the Right to Use assets at the date of initial application.

Balance as on 1

(c)    The Company uses hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

On transition, i.e. as on 1st April, 2019, the Company has recognized lease liability of Rs. 3,776.37 lakhs and right-of-use assets amounting to
Rs. 4,077.69 lakhs (after adjusting the prepaid lease rent). The expense towards such leases is now recorded as depreciation on Right of Use
Assets and finance cost on lease liability, instead of rent expense. Accordingly, there is an increase in depreciation of Rs. 250.05 lakhs, increase
in finance costs of Rs. 455.51 lakhs, decrease in operating lease rent of Rs. 475.58 lakhs and decrease in the profit before tax of Rs. 229.98 lakhs
for the year ended 31st March, 2020. Therefore, these expenses for the current year are not comparable to the previous years, to this extent.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1st April, 2019 is 12% p.a.

Additions

      Current Lease Liabilites
      Non Current Lease Liabilites

Deletions

Following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Particulars
Balance as on 1
Additions

Following is the movement in Right of use assets during the year ended 31st March, 2020.
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 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
(ii) Lease expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss* 2.40 252.31

33 Earnings per share  AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2019

Loss for the year (Rs.in lakhs) (A) (457.92) (87.60)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 17,600,000 17,600,000

Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs. ) (A/B) (2.60) (0.50)
Face value of equity shares 10 10

34 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24

A. List of Related Parties (As identified by the Management)

a.  Enterprise where Control Exists
I.   Subsidiary

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited

II. Associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited)

b. Others (Enterprises where significant influence exercised by Key Managerial Personnel)
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited (Formerly Rishi Reality Leasing Services Private Limited)
VJTF Construction Private Limited
Witty Education Private Limited
Witty Enterprises Private Limited
Witty Infratech Private Limited
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust
Witty Global Education Trust

c.   Key Managerial personnel and relatives
Dr. Vinay Jain, Director
Dr. Raina Jain, Director

I. Transactions during the year (Rs. in lakhs)

Subsidiary Associate /
Others

Key
Management

Personnel
Subsidiary Associate / Others Key Management

Personnel

Interest Income
VJTF Infraschool
Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited

- 56.84 - - 67.73 -

VJTF Buildcon Private
Limited 100.10 - - 60.76 - -

Operational and
Management Fees
income
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 2.00 - - 2.00 -

B. Transactions during the year (at arm’s length) and balances outstanding as at the year end with related parties are as follows:

Particulars

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

*Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs. 2.4 lakh for the year ended 31 st March,
2020.
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Income Collected on our
behalf by
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 187.10 - - 200.51 -

Witty Education Private
limited - 133.45 - - 80.30 -

Interest Expenses
VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- - - - 89.31 -

Lease Rent Expenses
Witty Global Education
Trust - 60.00 - - 60.00 -

Dr.Raina Jain - - 2.40 - - -

Director's
Remuneration Expenses

Dr.Vinay Jain - - 60.00 - - 60.00
Dr.Raina Jain - - 60.00 - - 60.00

Reimbersment of
Expenses given
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 124.91 - - 63.45 -

Witty Education Private
limited - 17.04 - - 12.71 -

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- - - - 29.64 -

Loans Given

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited

- 58.76 - - 256.28 -

VJTF Buildcon Private
Limited 306.54 - - 276.83 - -

Loans Given Received
Back

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited

- - - - 1,068.12 -

VJTF Buildcon Private
Limited - - - 206.32 - -

Operation &
Managment Deposits
given

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - - - - 734.64 -

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education
Trust - 146.65 - - 174.49 -

91 of 142



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

Other Receivable-
Repaid

Witty Enterprises Private
Limited - - - - 0.06 -

Loans Taken

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- - - - 136.51 -

Loans Taken repaid
VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- 679.98 - - 483.04 -

Payments made on
behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 2,896.36 - - 4,978.52 -

Witty Global Education
Trust - 269.44 - - 442.15 -

Payments made on
behalf of - received
back:

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 2,896.36 - - 4,986.29 -

Witty Global Education
Trust - 122.79 - - 442.15 -

Payments received on
behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 418.14 - - 18.23 -

Witty Education Private
Limited - 1,154.17 - - 1,995.87 -

Witty Global Education
Trust - 106.67 - - 63.62 -

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- 697.98 - - - -

Payments received on
behalf of - repaid:

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 321.66 - - - -

Witty Education Private
Limited - 544.86 - - 1,969.38 -
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Witty Global Education
Trust - 106.67 - - 63.62 -

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- 133.11 - - - -

Security cum Guarantee
Taken (Amount
reduced)

VJTF Constructions
Private Limited - 25.00 - - - -

Dr Raina Jain
Dr Vinay Jain - - 25.00 - - -

Security cum Guarantee
Given

Witty Enterprises Private
Limited - - - - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private
Limited - - - - 1,100.00 -

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited

- - - - 1,000.00 -

Dr Raina Jain - - - - - 500.00

II. Outstanding balances as at the year end (Rs. in lakhs)

Loan Given
VJTF Infraschool
Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited

- 507.24 - - 448.48 -

VJTF Buildcon Private
Limited 799.08 - - 492.54 - -

Lease Deposit Given
Witty Global Education
Trust - 479.19 - - 332.54 -

Dr.Raina Jain - - 411.17 - - 411.17

Operation &
Managment Deposits
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 1,400.14 - - 1,400.14 -

Investment in Shares of
an subsidiary and
associate
VJTF Buildcon Private
Limited 313.70 - - 313.70 - -

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited

- 482.25 - - 482.25 -

Rent Payables
Witty Global Education
Trust - 15.90 - - - -

Dr.Raina Jain - - 2.40 - - -

Loans Taken
VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- - - - 679.98 -

Associate/
Others

Key Management
PersonnelAssociate/Others

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Key
Management

Personnel

Particulars
Subsidiary

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

Subsidiary
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Other Current Liability

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- 564.87 - - - -

Payable to associates

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - 114.70 - - 18.23 -

Witty Education Private
Limited - 617.73 - - 8.43 -

Director's
Remuneration Payable

Dr.Vinay Jain - - 7.56 - - -
Dr.Raina Jain - - 6.51 - - -

Security cum Guarantee
taken

VJTF Construction
Private Limited - 400.00 - - 425.00 -

Dr Raina Jain
Dr Vinay Jain - - 400.00 - - 425.00

Security cum Guarantee
Given

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited

- 10,357.35 - - 10,357.35 -

VJTF Infraschool
Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited

- 3,060.00 - - 3,060.00 -

Witty Enterprises Private
Limited - 10,000.00 - - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private
Limited - 1,100.00 - - 1,100.00 -

Dr Raina Jain - - 500.00 - - 500.00

1. Above disclosed amounts represent transaction values only, without considering the impact of  GST and IND AS .
2. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off / back or provided for.
3. Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.

35
A Loans and advances (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding
Balances as at
the year end

Maximum
Amount

Outstanding
During the year

Outstanding
Balances as at the

year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the

year

507.24 507.24 448.48 1,323.06
VJTF Buildcon Private Limited 799.08 799.08 492.54 492.54
Total 1,306.32 1,306.32 1,682.36 1,932.82

notes :

Name of the Party

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2020
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B Premises Lease Deposit and Operation and Management Deposit (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding
Balances as at
the year end

Maximum
Amount

Outstanding
During the year

Outstanding
Balances as at the

year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the

year

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable trust 1,400.14 1,400.14 1,400.14 1,400.14
Witty Global Education Trust 479.19 479.19 332.54 332.53
Dr. Raina Jain 411.17 411.17 411.17 411.17
Total 2,290.50 2,290.50 1,234.72 4,360.88

36 Disclosure as required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

37 Fair value measurements and accoutning classification

 AS AT
31ST MARCH,

2020
 AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2019
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Financial assets carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)
Non-Current

Investments (Subsidiaries, Associates) 795.95 795.95
Other Investments 0.92 0.92
Other Financial Assets

1,890.00 1,472.56
Current

Trade Receivables 8.05 2.04
Cash and Cash
Equivalents 44.01 55.46
Loans 1,309.44 1,042.88
Other Financial Assets 314.49 313.44

4,362.85 3,683.25
Financial liabilities carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current
Borrowings 605.96 774.75
Other Financial
Liabilities 2,657.95 60.79

Current
Borrowings 354.99 1,062.13
Trade Payables 143.30 91.43
Other Financial 1,088.85 342.50

4,851.05 2,331.60

38

(A) Credit Risk

Refer note 3 and 34 above with respect to Loans, Guarantees and Securities given as well as investments made – for business purpose.

Financial risk management

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2020

The following tables shows the carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities. In all cases of financial assets and liabilities, carrying
amount (amortised cost) is a reasonable estimate of fair value, therefore, defining levels of fair value hiearchy is not applicable.

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on
the financial performance, the Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under policies approved by the board of
directors and top management. Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the Company’s
operating units. The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

Name of the Party

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company
periodically assess financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of
historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the
risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information such as:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

Ageing of Account receivables : (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars  AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2020
AS AT

31st MARCH, 2019

0-3 months                                   -                                           -
3-6 months                                   -                                       2.04
6 months to 12 months                               7.16                                           -
beyond 12 months                               0.89                                           -
Total                               8.05                                       2.04

(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities
As at 31st March, 2020

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

Term Loans - - 70.28 22.83 361.30 454.41
Vehicle Loans - - 182.52 - 221.82 404.34
Loan from bodies corpora - - 105.58 - - 105.58

Overdraft from bank - - 249.41 - - 249.41
Trade payables 22.48 90.41 30.41 - - 143.30
Security deposits - - - - 67.20 67.20
Interest accrued but not
due on borrowings 4.68 - - - - 4.68

Lease Liabilites - - 49.67 - 2,590.75 2,640.42
Payable to a Related
Party

- -
732.44

- -
732.44

Other payables 49.27 - - - - 49.27
Total non-derivative
liabilities

76.44 90.41 1,420.30 22.83 3,241.07 4,851.05

Amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

The company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market
interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of the internal credit management system. A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make payments as per contract. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which
entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management system. Internal credit
control and management is performed on a Company basis for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet
obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the working capital requirements. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
group’s liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances along with liquid investments) on the basis of expected cash flows.
This is generally carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary to take into account the
liquidity of the market in which the Company operates.

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry
practices and the business environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based
on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional provision considered.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit
enhancements.

Credit risk is managed at segment as well as Company level. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities
As at 31st March, 2019

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

Term Loans - - 110.48 - 370.41 480.88
Vehicle Loans - - 166.48 125.04 279.30 570.82
Loan from Body Corpora - - 809.98 - - 809.98

Overdraft from bank - - 252.15 - - 252.15
Trade payables 12.99 45.66 32.78 - - 91.44
Security deposits - - 60.79 - - 60.79
Interest accrued but not
due on borrowings 5.02 - - - - 5.02

Payable to a Related
Party - -

26.65
- - 26.65

Other payables 33.87 - - - - 33.87
Total non-derivative
liabilities

51.88 45.66 1,459.31 125.04 649.71 2,331.60

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Interest rate risk

39 Capital Management

 (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars  AS AT
31ST MARCH,

2020

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019

1,169.72 2,058.38

Total equity 1,818.16 2,271.49
Net debt to equity ratio 64.34% 90.62%
Loan covenants : The company intends to manage optimal gearing ratios.

40

A
 (Rs. in lakhs)

YEAR ENDED 31st
MARCH, 2020

 YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2019

Contracted price 1,465.55 1,630.56

12.60 12.15

1,452.95 1,618.41

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Revenue recognised

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. According to the Company, interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. The Company is not significantly
exposed to the interest rate risk, since the borrowings of the Company are on Fixed interest rate basis.

Net debt (Total  borrowings, including current maturities less cash & cash equivalent
excluding Lease Liability under Ind AS 116)

Less: Returns, rebates, incentive and other similar allowances

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to :
1. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and
2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. As on the balance-sheet date, the Company does not have foreign currency receivables or payables and is therefore not exposed to foreign
exchange risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk includes investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company's treasury team
manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

B

C  (Rs. in lakhs)

YEAR ENDED 31st
MARCH, 2020

 YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2019

1,049.75 1,287.00
(1,049.75) (922.84)

1,098.08 685.59

1,098.08 1,049.75

41

42 Recent Accounting Pronouncements  - Standards issued but not yet effective

43

44

45

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR  J. KALA & ASSOCIATES FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No.: 118769W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
VAIBHAV PATODI DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN SHRUTI SHARMA
PARTNER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
Membership No. 420935 DIN No. 00235276 DIN No. 01142103 Membership No.A52723

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE : 31st July, 2020

Changes in contract liabilities (fees received in advance) are as follows:

The accounts of certain trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and banks are, however, subject to formal confirmations or
reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. However, there is no indication of dispute on these accounts, other than those mentioned in
the financial statements. The management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements on such
reconciliation/adjustments.

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance
obligations, along with the broad time band for the expected time to recognise those revenues, the Company has applied the practical expedient
in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied
performance obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised corresponds to the value transferred to customer typically
involving time based and event based contracts.

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations is Rs.1,098.08 lakhs, which is
expected to be recognised as revenue in the next year.

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the
year

Balance at the beginning of the year

There is no interest paid during the year and no principle and interest is outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on Balance
sheet date.

Previous years’ figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year.

Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would
have been applicable from April 01, 2020.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The Company’s Directors are identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The
CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the
Company is primarily engaged in only one segment viz.,‘Educational Services’ and that all operations are in India. Hence the Company does not
have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”.
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 (Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

A ASSETS

1 NON CURRENT ASSETS
       a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 3,325.59 774.93
       b) Goodwill on Amalgamation 936.53 936.53
       c) Investment Accounted for Using the Equity Method 3 - -
       d) Financial Assets

i. Investments 4 0.92 0.92
ii. Other Financial Assets 5 5,915.31 3,472.56

       e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 - 12.03
       f) Income Tax Assets (Net) 7 17.22 9.58
       g) Other Non-Current Assets 8 - 352.94

10,195.57 5,559.49

2 CURRENT ASSETS
        a) Financial Assets

i. Trade Receivables 9 8.05 2.04
ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 45.33 56.82
iii. Loans 11 510.36 550.34
iv. Other Financial Assets 12 314.49 2,812.71

        b) Other Current Assets 13 10.85 142.66
889.08 3,564.57

TOTAL 11,084.65 9,124.06

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 EQUITY
        a) Equity Share Capital 14 1,760.00 1,760.00
        b) Other Equity 15 1,907.63 2,341.60
        Equity attributable to owners of the company 3,667.63 4,101.60
        c) Non-Controlling Interest 564.26 560.13

4,231.89 4,661.73

2 LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
        a) Financial Liabilities

 i) Borrowings 16 605.96 774.75
              ii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 2,657.95 60.80
        b)  Provisions 18 26.97 17.98
        c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 29.78 -

3,320.66 853.53

CURRENT LIABILITIES
        a) Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 19 354.99 1,062.14
ii. Trade Payables 20 143.99 91.79
iii. Other Financial Liabilities 21 1,088.86 342.49

        b) Other Current Liabilities 22 1,936.80 1,290.15
        c) Provisions 23 0.58 6.88
        d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 24 6.88 815.36

3,532.10 3,608.80

TOTAL 11,084.65 9,124.06

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
 The accompanying notes from an integral part of the
Financial Statements 1-50

 AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
 FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration  No. 118769W

Sd/- Sd/-                            Sd/-            Sd/-
VAIBHAV PATODI DR. VINAY JAIN             DR. RAINA JAIN SHRUTI SHARMA
PARTNER COMPANY SECRETARY

Membership No. 420935 Membership No.A52723

PLACE  :  MUMBAI
DATE  : 31st July, 2020

 PARTICULARS  NOTES
AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2020
AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2019

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

  CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

DIRECTOR                        DIRECTOR

DIN No.00235276               DIN No.01142103
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(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

I REVENUE
Revenue from Operations 25 1,452.95 1,618.41
Other Income 26 511.76 3,953.69

Total 1,964.71 5,572.10

II EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 27 535.45 548.43
Finance Costs 28 696.42 399.48
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 392.31 119.47
Other Expenses 29 651.74 937.53
Total 2,275.92 2,004.91

Profit before share of profits / (loss) of an associate (311.21) 3,567.19
Add:  Share of loss of an associate - (104.25)
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (311.21) 3,462.94

Tax Expense :
     Current  Tax 27.00 870.03
     Short provision for taxation of earlier years 56.03 10.71
     MAT Credit Entitlement 38.89 (4.75)
     Deferred Tax 1.31 (8.63)

Profit / (Loss) for the year (A) (434.44) 2,595.59

Other Comprehensive Income
a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
              Re-measurement Gain on defined benefit plans 6.21 9.48
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items (1.61) (2.47)
b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss - -
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items - -

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B) 4.60 7.01

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (A+B) (429.84) 2,602.60

Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (438.57) 2,123.88
Non - controlling interests 4.13 471.70

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (433.97) 2,130.89
Non - controlling interests 4.13 471.70

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (2.47) 14.75
(Face value of Rs.10 per equity share)

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
 The accompanying notes from an integral part of the
Financial Statements 1-50

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration  No. 118769W

  Sd/-
VAIBHAV PATODI           Sd/-
PARTNER SHRUTI SHARMA
Membership No. 420935 COMPANY SECRETARY

Membership No.A52723
PLACE  :  MUMBAI
DATE  : 31st July, 2020

Sd/-                                                  Sd/-
DR. VINAY JAIN                DR. RAINA JAIN
DIRECTOR                             DIRECTOR

DIN No.00235276                  DIN No.01142103

NOTES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH , 2020

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2019PARTICULARS
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(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax: (311.21) 3,567.19

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 392.31 119.47
Accrued liability for Gratuity -
Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back (2.42) (23.46)
Sundry irrecoverable balances written off 1.97 0.88
Interest Income on Fixed deposit with bank (201.47) (49.96)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - (3,677.39)
Profit on Lease Termination (66.74) -
Interest Income on Loans given (426.27) (240.53)
Finance Costs 696.42 399.48

Operating profit before Working Capital changes 85.29 95.68

Movements in Working Capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables (6.01) 53.21
Increase in Financials and other assets (Current and Non Current) (2,174.61) (400.42)
Increase\ (Decrease) in Trade Payable, Other Liabilities and Provisions 3,915.54 (11.92)
Cash flow/ (used) in Operations 1,820.21 (263.45)
Direct taxes paid (899.15) (119.79)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) Operating Activities 921.06 (383.24)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 2,439.20 1,759.88
Receipt against loan given 39.98 811.60
Investment in Fixed Deposit - (2,000.00)
Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposit 2,000.00 -
Interest on fixed deposit received 201.47 49.96
Advance given against Share application money (4,025.31) -
Sale of Investments - 4.99
Interest received on loan given 426.27 240.53
Net cash flow from Investing Activities 1,081.61 866.96

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Borrowings 400.00 940.56
Repayment of Borrowings (1,300.10) (1,065.97)
Payment of lease liabilities (417.65) -
Finance Costs paid (696.42) (399.48)
Net cash used in from Financing Activities (2,014.17) (524.89)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C ) (11.49) (41.17)

Cash and Bank Balances at the beginning of the year 56.82 97.99

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 45.33 56.82

 Notes :
1
2

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration  No. 118769W

VAIBHAV PATODI
PARTNER
Membership No. 420935

PLACE  :  MUMBAI
DATE    : 31st July, 2020

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IndAS - 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to this years classification.

Sd/-                                      Sd/-                             Sd/-
DR. VINAY JAIN       DR. RAINA JAIN      SHRUTI SHARMA
DIRECTOR                 DIRECTOR               COMPANY SECRETARY
DIN No.00235276      DIN No.01142103      Membership No.A52723

          Sd/-

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2020

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2019

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
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The consolidated financial statements comprises financial statements of VJTF Eduservices Limited (the Parent company), its subsidiay -VJTF Buildcon
Private Limited and its asociate -VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private limited) (hereinafter to be
referredd as the Group) for the year ended March 31, 2020.

The Parent company was incorporated on 03rd September, 1984 having registered office at Mumbai. The Group has established itself as an emerging player in
the Education Services Segment. The Group provides services to Operational Education Projects. The Group also provides required auxiliary / support
services to other companies in the Education Sector.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ’Ind AS’) as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
standards) Rules as amended from time to time  and other related provisions of the Act.
The Group had prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under companies (Accounting Standard)
Rule, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting requirement in
India.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for the following
material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

(i)   Certain financial assets and liabilities
(ii)  Defined benefit employee plan

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements . All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

The consolidated financial statements  are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Group.

Basis of Consolidatation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent company and its subsidiary as at March 31, 2020.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has
(a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the subsidiary.

Consolidatation Procedure
Subsidiaries
(a) Combine, on line by line basis like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this
purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financia statements at the
acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the Parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.
(c) Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and Cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or
losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment (PPE), are eliminated in full).
Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member
of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies .

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries:
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the group.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the

Associates
Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence. Investment in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
after initially being recognised at cost.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Management to make, judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the consolidated financial
statements is made relying on these estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the management and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that
the management believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The Group is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
(a) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions
(b) Estimation of fair value of financial instruments
(c) Estimated credit loss of trade receivables
(d) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and that the cost of the item can be reliably
measured.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill on amalgamation)  are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment property.
Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment if any.

(a) Property plant and equipment (PPE) and Investment Property
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Act. The residual
values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method is
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. On initial recognition, a financial asset is
recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.
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Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:
 - amortised cost
 - fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The above classification is being determined considering the:
 - the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
 - the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

(i) Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business module whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. Such
financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
(iii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the Effective Interest Rate method and
impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and  Loss

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These
elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive
income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of
cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other
income’ line item.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit
loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all
reasonable and supportable including that which is forward looking.

The Group’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL at each
reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Group recognises 12–months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the
reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of
the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity
instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement of impairment testing.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash
flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised
at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. The Group’s financial liabilities includes trade
and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original maturity is three months or
less. Outstanding bank overdrafts are adjusted in cash and cash equivalents as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

a) Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Group are restated at the closing exchange rates. Non monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transaction.  Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company
expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration received or
receivable, adjusted for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. The
Company earns revenue primarily from providing educational services.

Revenues from services rendered are recognized pro-rata on accrual basis over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered or performance
obligation are satisfied.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of
the consideration is due).

Rental Income is recognised on a time proportion basis as per the contractual obligations agreed with the respective tenant.

Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive the same is established.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of
Cost of that assets, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use or sale are complete during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax:
Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between accounting and tax
treatments, and due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities. Interest and penalties on tax liabilities
are provided for in the tax charge. The Group offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally enforceable right and
where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net basis.
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Deferred tax:
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in consolidated financial statements . Deferred income
tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is more likely than not that the assets will
not be realised in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal
income-tax during the specified period. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
(b) Post-employment obligations
The Group has following post-employment plans:
(i) Defined benefit plans such a gratuity and
(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements;
(b) Net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from
(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses
(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling
(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling
are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and
pensioner demographics. The Group determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with best
practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive
income and balance sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions.
(ii) Defined-contribution plan:
Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Group pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal obligation to
pay additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees’ provident fund with the government, superannuation fund and
certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance and Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Group’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised
as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

Where the Group is Lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) 

(ii) 
(iii) 
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or
a termination option.

Lease liability shown under Other Financial Liabilities and right of use asset is shown in Plant property and equipment as lease Asset (Right of use) and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the future obligations under the contract.
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources
or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements .

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
dependent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint-venture and associate are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.

Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

119 of 142



The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting. The acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. The difference between the fair value of the
purchase consideration paid together with non-controlling interest on acquisition date and the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill or
capital reserve on acquisition. The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed is recognized as goodwill. Any shortfall is recognised as capital reserve on consolidation.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there exists clear evidence of underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
all of the liabilities assumed and recognises any additional asset or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The Group then reviews the procedures
used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this reassessment and review,
the Group recognises it in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. This gain is attributed to the acquirer. If there
does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Group recognises the gain, after
reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve.
The interest in non-controlling interest is initially measured at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition by acquisition basis. Subsequent to initial acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interest is the
amount of those interest in initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity of subsidiaries.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting in a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value and included as a part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments, are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding
adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as the measurement period adjustments depends on
how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at fair value at
subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amount for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amount are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amount recognised at that date.

Business Combination under common control are accounted as per Appendix C in IND AS 103 - Business combinations, at carrying amount of assets and
liabilities acquired and any excess of consideration issued over the net assets acquired is recognized as capital reserve on common control business
combination.

Acquisition of interest in an associate or a joint venture, is initially recognised at cost. Any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is regarded as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised in
equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

3 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
As at 31st

March, 2020
As at 31st

March, 2019
In an Associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited
Formerly known as VJTF Infrastructure Private
Limited. (Face value of share Rs. 10) 1,638,217 1,638,217 - 104.25
Add: Share of profit / (loss) for the year - (104.25)

- -

4 INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

(At cost, fully paid up) As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st
March, 2019

Malad Sahakari Bank Ltd. (Face value of share Rs. 10) 100 100 0.01 0.01

Mangal Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Face value of share Rs. 50) 1,810 1,810 0.91 0.91

0.92 0.92

5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits given to
      Related Parties 1,830.11 1,369.43
      Others 59.89 103.13
Bank deposite with maturity period of more than 12 months* - 2,000.00
Advance given against share application money (Related Party) 4,025.31 -

5,915.31 3,472.56

6 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ LIABILITY (NET)

Deferred Tax Liability(Refer note below for component and movement) (75.47) (72.55)
MAT Credit Entitlement 45.69 84.58

(29.78) 1.11

Component and movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) : (Rs. in lakh)

 Property, Plant
and Equipment

 Financial
Assets /

Liabilities

 Unabsorbed
tax losses and
depreciation

 Others

At 31st March, 2018 (199.28) 83.21 30.11 7.24 (78.72)
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss 10.80 0.07 (3.92) 1.69 8.64
- to other comprehensive income - - - (2.47) (2.47)

At 31st March, 2019 (188.48) 83.28 26.19 6.46 (72.55)
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss (755.58) 721.25 30.71 2.31 (1.31)
- to other comprehensive income - - - (1.61) (1.61)

At 31st March, 2020 (944.06) 804.53 56.90 7.16 (75.47)

No. of Shares

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

Deferred tax for temporary differences attributable to

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

No. of Shares

Particulars  Total Deferred Tax
Assets / (Liabilities)
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As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

7 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
 Income Tax Receivable ((Net of provision of Rs.45.99 Lakh, As at 31st March, 2019 - Rs. 39.90 Lakhs) 17.22 9.58

17.22 9.58

8 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid rent - 352.94

- 352.94

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

- -
Others : 8.05 2.04

8.05 2.04

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks:
 On Current Accounts 23.30 38.01

Cash on Hand 22.03 18.81

45.33 56.82

11 LOANS
(Unsecured, Considered Good )

Loans to related party:
     Associate where significant influence excercised 507.24 448.48
Loans and Advances to Employees 2.12 1.86
Loans and Advances to Others 1.00 100.00

510.36 550.34

12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Receivable against sale of asset 306.95 2,761.95
Other receivables

Other than related parties* 7.54 50.76

314.49 2,812.71
*Net of Provision for doubtful advances of Rs. 51.25 Lakhs (As at 31st March, 2018 - Rs. 51.25 Lakhs)

13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

     Prepaid Expenses 1.84 20.15
     Prepaid Rent - 105.49
     Prepaid Insurance 9.01 17.02

10.85 142.66

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they became due for payment

122 of 142



As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

2,00,00,000 (31st March, 2019- 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each 2,000.00 2,000.00
2,000.00 2,000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

1,760.00 1,760.00

1,760.00 1,760.00

(A) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh Number
At the beginning of the year 17,600,000 1,760.00 1,760.00 17,600,000
Changes during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 17,600,000 1,760.00 1,760.00 17,600,000

(B) Terms, Rights and Preferences attached to Equity shares:

(C) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

 Number of
shares

 Percentage of
holding

 Number of shares  Percentage of
holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid :
Vinay Dharamchand Jain 6,078,122 34.53 6,078,122 34.53
Raina Vinay Jain 5,177,051 29.42 5,177,051 29.42
Sam Financial Services Private Limited 1,604,649 9.12 1,604,649 9.12
Badri Baldawa 1,084,995 6.16 1,084,995 6.16

15 OTHER EQUITY

General reserve 200.00 200.00
Capital reserves on consolidation 152.44 152.44
Retained earnings 1,491.30 1,929.87
Other comprehensive income 63.89 59.29

1,907.63 2,341.60
Nature & purpose of other equity and reserves :

1,76,00,000 (31st March, 2019 - 1,76,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

Capital Reserve on Consolidation : Capital reserve is created out of capital profits and is usually not distributed as dividend to shareholders.

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

The shareholders have all other rights as available to equity shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, as applicable.

As at 31st March, 2019

As at 31st March, 2020

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders will be entitled in proportion to the number of equity shares held by them receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, presently there are no such preferential amounts.

As at 31st March, 2020

General Reserve: General Reserves are created out of profits and kept aside for general purpose and financial strengthening of the company, they don’t
have any special purpose to fulfill and can be used for any purpose in future.

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The shareholders have the right to receive interim dividends declared by the Board of
Directors and Final dividend  proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders.

As at 31st March, 2019
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As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

16 BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)
SECURED

Term Loans
       Small Business Financial Credit (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) - 309.99
       Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 384.13 -

Vehicle Loans from Banks and NBFCS
     (Secured by way of hypothecation of motor vehicles purchased there against)
       Kotak Mahindra Bank 72.89 187.34
       HDFC Bank 132.51 192.52
       Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 16.43 24.48

605.96 714.33

UNSECURED
Term Loans from

Kotak Mahindra bank - 60.42

605.96 774.75

Rate of Interest, Details of Security and Term of Repayment of Term Loans :

 Small Business Financial Credit (Non - banking Financial Institution - NBFC)

 Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC)

 Vehicle Loans

Repayable by Rate of Interest Bank Name

April 20th, 2021 8.41%  Kotak Bank 32.37 101.94
January 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 26.10 55.01

June 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank 14.42 30.39
February 5th, 2023 8.50%  HDFC Bank 132.51 192.52

205.40 379.86

Vehicle Loans-Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd.
Carries interest at 7.50% p.a.. The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments ending on January, 2023.

Terms loan- Kotak bank

17 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Lease Obligations*:
    Lease Liabilities 3,008.40 -
     Less: Rent Paid (417.65) -

 Security Deposits from Employees/Others 67.20 60.80

2,657.95 60.80
*(For details - Refer Note 35 )

18 PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)
Provision for employee benefits

                   Gratuity 26.97 17.98

                          26.97                             17.98

Carries interest at 12.50% p.a.. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company and personally  guaranteed by the Directors.
The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from January, 2020 and ending on September, 2030.

Carries interest at 15.50% p.a. Previous year. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company and personally  guaranteed by
the Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from October, 2015 and ending on September, 2024, however loan has been taken over by
Aditya birla finance limited in current year for which refer note below.

Carries interest at 14.00% p.a..The loan is repayable in 24 monthly installments commencing from April, 2019.
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As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

19 BORROWINGS (CURRENT)
(Unsecued, Repayable on damand)
 Loan from bodies corporate

related party* - 679.98
others** 105.58 130.00

 Overdraft from Bank*** 249.41 252.16

354.99 1,062.14
    *(Rate of interest 11% p.a, Previous year 11% p.a.)
    **(Rate of interest 12% p.a, Previous year 12% p.a.)
    ***(Rate of interest 11.25% p.a, Previous year 11.25% p.a.)

20 TRADE PAYABLES

      Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
      Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 143.99 91.79

143.99 91.79

21 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

 Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* 252.79 276.94
 Interest Accrued but not Due 4.68 5.02
 Payables to a Related Party 732.44 26.65
 Lease Liabilites** 49.67 -
 Due to Employees 49.28 33.87

1,088.86 342.49

**(For details - Refer Note 35 )

22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory dues 258.85 228.46
 Payables to a Related Party 564.87 -
 Advance received against sale of Fixed Assets 15.00 -
Bank Book Overdraft - 11.94
Contract Liability* (Fees Received in advance) 1,098.07 1,049.75

*(For details - Refer Note 43 ) 1,936.80 1,290.15

23 PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
           Provision for employee benefits
                       Gratuity 0.58 6.88

0.58 6.88

24 CURRENT TAX LAIBILITY (NET)

Provision For Tax 27.00 865.28
Less: Tax payments (20.12) (49.92)

6.88 815.36

* (For details of Securities- Refer Note 17 herein above)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2020

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Services (Educational Activities):
    Course and other fees 1,452.95 1,618.41

1,452.95 1,618.41

26 OTHER INCOME

 Interest Income on:
        Loans Given 65.38 81.27
        Bank Fixed Deposit 201.47 49.96
        Unwinding of Interest (Income) 159.42 109.30
        Income Tax Refund 0.03 -
Profit on sale of Property Plant and Equipment - 3,677.39
Profit on Lease Termination 66.74 -
Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back 2.42 18.30
Gratuity provision  no longer required written back - 5.16
Miscellaneous Income 16.30 12.31

511.76 3,953.69

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 523.01 532.24
Gratuity Expense 8.90 11.40
Contribution to Provident and Other funds 2.17 3.32
Staff Welfare 1.37 1.47

535.45 548.43

28 FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense on:
      Borrowings 185.89 227.67
      Leased Liability 455.51 -

      Delayed Payment of Statutory dues 13.39 7.10
Other Borrowing Cost:
      Loan Processing Fees 6.45 164.71
     Unwinding of interest (Expenses) 35.18 -

696.42 399.48

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2020

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2020

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
29 OTHER EXPENSES

Advertisement and Publicity 33.36 6.66
Auditors' Remuneration:

   Audit Fees 4.33 3.70
   Reimbursement of goods and service tax 0.04 0.04

Electricity 30.37 26.03
Events and Programmes 3.70 2.11
Filing Fees 0.04 0.34
Housekeeping Charges 21.41 21.40
Insurance 26.36 18.65
Kids Welfare Activities 76.79 39.50
Legal and Professional 40.83 28.57
Custodial Fees - 0.43
Office Expenses 99.54 74.76
Postage, Telegram, Telephone and Internet 1.98 3.34
Printing and Stationery 18.09 5.79
Rates and Taxes 23.71 157.70
Rent 2.40 252.31
Repairs and Maintenance 7.84 7.07
Security Charges 24.67 16.50
Teaching Honorarium 0.28 5.14
Travelling Expenses 15.23 4.11
Vehicle Expenses 163.53 206.69
Water Charges 2.58 3.94
Cafeteria Expenses 48.91 46.77
Bank Charges 1.62 1.50
Sundry irrecoverable balances written off 1.97 0.88
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.16 3.60

651.74 937.54

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
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30

 YEAR ENDED
31st MARCH, 2020

 YEAR ENDED
31st MARCH, 2019

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
     Current  Tax 27.00 870.03
     Short provision for taxation of earlier years 56.03 10.71
     MAT Credit Entitlement 38.89 (4.75)
     Deferred Tax 1.31 (8.63)
Total tax expense 123.23 867.36

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Profit/ (Loss) before income tax expense (311.21) 3,462.94
Enacted income tax rate in 26.00% 29.12%

Tax expenses/ (benefits) on profit/ (Loss) before tax at the enacted income tax rate (A) (80.91) 1,008.41

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (B)
                       (228.83)

                                    1.57                           60.79
                                    3.69                             1.85
                                  56.03                           10.71
                                  38.89                            (4.75)
                                  40.60

                          30.36
                                  63.36                          (11.18)

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) 123.23 867.36

Effective tax rate -39.60% 25.05%

31

(Rs. in lakhs)

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 0.58 26.97 6.88 17.98
Total

Gratuity (Post-employment obligations)

(Rs. in lakh)

 Present value
of obligation

Fair value of plan
assets

 Net amount
(UNFUNDED)

Present value of
obligation  Fair value of plan assets  Net amount

(UNFUNDED)

As at the beginning of the
year 24.86 - 24.86 28.10 - 28.10

Current service cost 7.04 - 7.04 9.24 - 9.24
Past service cost - - - - - -
Interest expense 1.86 - 1.86 2.16 - 2.16

Excess provision written back
- - - - - -

Total amount recognized in
profit or loss 8.90 - 8.90 11.40 - 11.40

Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in
assumptions

2.82 - 2.82 (0.15) - (0.15)

Experience gains (9.03) - (9.03) (9.34) - -

Total amount recognised in
other comprehensive income

(6.21) - (6.21) (9.49) - (9.49)

Benefit payments - - - (5.16) - (5.16)

As at end of the year 27.55 - 27.55 24.86 - 24.86

Deferred tax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Income taxable at lower rate of tax
Interest on income tax
Permanent Disallowances
Short provision for taxation of earlier years

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020
Particulars

Share of loss of an associate
Others

Employee benefit obligations

MAT Credit Entitlement

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020 AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

24.86

The Company provides for gratuity as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The
Company does not fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

27.55

Income tax expense
This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant
estimates made in relation to the Company’s tax positions.

Particulars
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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Particulars
Discount rate
Salary growth rate

 Increase in assumption  Decrease in
assumption  Increase in assumption  Decrease in

assumption
Discount rate 25.91 29.35 23.47 26.37
Salary growth rate 29.28 25.97 26.30 23.50

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 2020 as follows (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars
Year 1 0.58
Year 2 0.82
Year 3 3.97
Year 4 1.05
Year 5 1.13
Thereafter 7.39

33 Global Health Pandemic from COVID – 19 (“Covid – 19”)

34 Contingent liabilities:  AS AT
31st MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
Disputed Income Tax matters 39.33 1.58
Corporate Guarantees/Securities given 25,017.35 25,017.35

35 Leases

(Rs. in Lakh)

-
4,077.69

(1,201.48)
(199.10)

2,677.11

(Rs. in Lakh)
3,776.37

-
455.51

(1,173.81)
417.65

2,640.42
49.67

2,590.75

Covid-19 have been declared as a global pandemic, the Indian Government has declared the complete lock down since March 24, 2020 and the same is continuing with minor
exemptions and essential services were allowed to operate with limited capacity.The nationwide lockdown due to spread of COVID-19 and other significant restrictions had an
impact on the education sector as well. The campuses were non-operational during the lockdown period. However, the students were being serviced through online mode of
teaching.Based on the facts and circumstances, there is no major impact on the business of the Company. The Company is closely monitoring any material changes on a
continuous basis.

      Current Lease Liabilites
      Non Current Lease Liabilites

Balance as on 1
Additions
Interest accrued during the year
Deletions

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1st April, 2019 is 12% p.a.

Following is the movement in Right of use assets during the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Additions

Following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Particulars

Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as on March 31, 2020

Effective 1st April, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using modified retrospective approach, as a result of which comparative information are not required

The Company has used following practical expedient, when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17.
(a)    The Company didn’t recognise Right to Use and Lease liabilities for lease for which the lease terms ends within 12 months on the date of initial transition and low value
(b)   The Company excluded initial direct cost from measurement of the Right to Use assets at the date of initial application.
(c)    The Company uses hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020 AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

The average outstanding term of the obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 13.67 years.

Particulars

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities with respect to key assumptions

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020

Deletions

Balance as on 1

Amortisation cost
Balance as on March 31, 2020

On transition, i.e. as on 1st April, 2019, the Company has recognized lease liability of Rs. 3,776.37 lakhs and right-of-use assets amounting to Rs. 4,077.69 lakhs (after

The difference between the lease commitments recorded, as of 31st March 2019, under Ind AS 17 and the value of the lease liabilitiesas of 1st April, 2019, is on account of use

Change in assumption by
AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020 AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

6.85%
5.00%

There are no pending litigations against the company, except as stated above. The Company reviews all its litigations and proceedings and makes adequate provisions, wherever
required and discloses the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements.

Particulars

7.75%
5.00%

0.50%
0.50%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

31ST MARCH, 2020 31ST MARCH, 2019
(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

Not later than one year 124.20 160.00
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,193.10 724.00
Later than five years 7,596.43 3,848.11
Total 8,913.73 4,732.11

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

2.40 252.31

36 Earnings per share  AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2019

(A)                                (434.44)                      2,595.59
(B)                          17,600,000                  17,600,000

(A/B)                                    (2.47)                           14.75
                                       10                                10

37 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24

a.  Enterprise where Control Exists

Associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited)

b. Others (Enterprises where significant influence exercised by Key Managerial Personnel)
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited (Formerly Rishi Reality Leasing Services Private Limited)
VJTF Constructions Private Limited
Witty Education Private Limited
Witty Enterprises Private Limited
Witty Infratech Private Limited
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust
Witty Global Education Trust

c.   Key Managerial personnel and relatives
Dr. Vinay Jain, Director
Dr. Raina Jain, Director

B. Transactions during the year (at arm’s length) and balances outstanding as at the year end with related parties are as follows:

I. Transactions during the year (Rs. in lakhs)

Key Management
Personnel

Key Management
Personnel

Interest Income -

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited 56.84 - 67.73 -

Operational and
Management Fees income

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 2.00 - 2.00 -

Income Collected on our
behalf by

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 187.10 - 200.51 -

Witty Education Private
limited 133.45 - 80.30 -

Interest Expenses
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited - - 89.31 -

Lease Rent Expenses

Witty Global Education Trust 60.00 - 60.00 -

Dr.Raina Jain - 2.40 - -

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

(i) Break-up of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 st March, 2020 on an undiscounted basis: :

*Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs. 2.4 lakh for the year ended 31 st March, 2020.

Particulars

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Associate / Others Associate / Others

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (Rs. in lakhs)

(ii) Lease expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss*

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs. )
Face value of equity shares
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Directors' Remuneration
Expenses
Dr.Vinay Jain - 60.00 - 60.00
Dr.Raina Jain - 60.00 - 60.00

Reimbersment of Expenses
given
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 124.91 - 63.45 -

Witty Education Private
limited 17.04 - 12.71 -

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited - - 29.64 -

Loans Given
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited 58.76 - 256.28 -

Loans Given Received Back

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited - - 1,068.12 -

Operation & Managment
Deposits given
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust - - 734.64 -

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust 146.65 - 174.49 -

Advance given against Share
application money
Witty Enterprises Private
Limited 4,025.31 - - -

Other Receivable- Repaid
Witty Enterprises Private
Limited - - 0.06 -

Loans Taken
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited - - 136.51 -

Loans Taken repaid
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited 679.98 - 483.04 -

Payments made on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 2,896.36 - 4,978.52 -

Witty Global Education Trust 269.44 - 442.15 -

Payments made on behalf of -
received back:
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 2,896.36 - 4,986.29 -

Witty Global Education Trust 122.79 - 442.15 -

Payments received on behalf
of:
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 418.14 - 18.23 -

Witty Education Private
Limited 1,154.17 - 1,995.87 -

Witty Global Education Trust 106.67 - 63.62 -

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited 697.98 - - -
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Payments received on behalf
of - repaid:
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 321.66 - - -

Witty Education Private
Limited 544.86 - 1,969.38 -

Witty Global Education Trust 106.67 - 63.62 -

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited 133.11 - - -

Security cum Guarantee
Taken (Amount reduced)
VJTF Constructions Private
Limited 25.00 - - -

Dr Raina Jain
Dr Vinay Jain - 25.00 - -

Security cum Guarantee
Given
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited - - 1,000.00 -

Witty Enterprises Private
Limited - - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private Limited - - 1,100.00 -

Dr Raina Jain
- - - 500.00

II. Outstanding balances as at the year end (Rs. in lakhs)

Loan Given
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited 507.24 - 448.48 -

VJTF Buildcon Private
Limited - - - -

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust 479.19 - 332.54 -

Dr.Raina Jain - 411.17 - 411.17

Operation & Managment
Deposits
Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 1,400.14 - 1,400.14 -

Investment in Shares of an
associate
VJTF Buildcon Private
Limited - - - -

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited 482.25 - 482.25 -

Advance given against Share
application money

Witty Enterprises Private
Limited 4,025.31 - - -

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019
Key Management

Personnel
Key Management

PersonnelAssociate / OthersAssociate / Others
Particulars
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Rent Payables

Witty Global Education Trust 15.90 - - -

Dr.Raina Jain - 2.40 - -

Loans Taken

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited - - 679.98 -

Other Current Liability
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited 564.87 - - -

Payable to associates

Pratiksha Foundation
Charitable Trust 114.70 - 18.23 -

Witty Education Private
Limited 617.73 - 8.43 -

Directors' Remuneration
Payable
Dr.Vinay Jain - 7.56 - -
Dr.Raina Jain - 6.51 - -

Security cum Guarantee
Taken

VJTF Constructions Private
Limited 400.00 - 425.00 -

Dr Raina Jain
Dr Vinay Jain - 400.00 - 425.00

Security cum Guarantee
Given

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited 10,357.35 - 10,357.35 -

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited 3,060.00 - 3,060.00 -

Witty Enterprises Private
Limited 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private Limited 1,100.00 - 1,100.00 -

Dr Raina Jain
- 500.00 - 500.00

1. Above disclosed amounts represent transaction values only, without considering the impact of  GST and IND AS .
2. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off / back or provided for.
3. Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.

38

A Loans and advances (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding Balances as at
the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During

the year

Outstanding Balances as
at the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During

the year

507.24 507.24 448.48 1,323.06
Total 507.24 507.24 448.48 1,323.06

notes :

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited

Disclosure as per requirement of regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

Name of the Party

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020
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B Premises Lease Deposit and Operation and Management Deposits (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding Balances as at
the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During

the year

Outstanding Balances as
at the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During

the year
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable trust 1,400.14 1,400.14 1,400.14 1,400.14
Witty Global Education Trust 479.19 479.19 332.53 332.53
Dr. Raina Jain 411.17 411.17 411.17 411.17
Total 2,290.50 2,290.50 2,143.84 2,143.84

39 Disclosure as required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

40 Fair value measurements and accoutning classification

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2020

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Financial assets carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current
Other Financial Assets 5,915.31 3,472.56
Other Investments 0.92 0.92

Current
Trade Receivables 8.05 2.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents

45.33 56.82
Loans 510.36 550.34
Other Financial Assets 314.49 2,812.71

6,794.46 6,895.38
Financial liabilities carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current
Borrowings 605.96 774.75
Other Financial Liabilities 2,657.95 60.80

Current
Borrowings 354.99 1,062.14
Trade Payables 143.99 91.79
Other Financial Liabilities 1,088.86 342.49

4,851.75 2,331.96

41

(A) Credit Risk

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management system. Internal credit control and management is
performed on a Company basis for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics.

The company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of the
internal credit management system. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract. This definition of default is determined by
considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,
iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit enhancements.

Refer note 4 and 37 above with respect to Loans, Guarantees and Securities given as well as investments made – for business purpose.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or
receivables have been written off, the Company continues engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognized in profit or loss.

Credit risk is managed at segment as well as Company level. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

The following tables shows the carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities. In all cases of financial assets and liabilities, carrying amount (amortised cost) is a
reasonable estimate of fair value, therefore, defining levels of fair value hiearchy is not applicable.

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance, the
Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under policies approved by the board of directors and top management. Company’s treasury identifies,
evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the Company’s operating units. The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assess financial
reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual
risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through
out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

Name of the Party

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020 AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

Financial risk management

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
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Ageing of Account receivables : (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019
0-3 months                                         -                                 -
3-6 months                                         -                             2.04
6 months to 12 months                                     7.16                                 -
beyond 12 months                                     0.89                                 -
Total                                     8.05                             2.04

(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities
As at 31st March, 2020

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

Term Loans - - 70.28 22.83 361.30 454.41
Vehicle Loans - - 182.52 - 221.82 404.34
Loan from bodies corporate - - 105.58 105.58

Overdraft from bank 249.41 249.41
Trade payables 22.48 90.41 31.10 - - 143.99
Security deposits - - - - 67.20 67.20
Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings 4.68 - - - - 4.68

Lease Liabilites - - 49.67 - 2,590.75 2,640.42
Payable to related party - - 732.44 - - 732.44
Other payables 49.27 - - - - 49.27

Total non-derivative liabilities 76.43 90.41 1,421.00 22.83 3,241.07 4,851.75

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities
As at 31st March, 2019

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

Term Loans - - 110.48 - 370.41 480.88
Vehicle Loans - - 166.48 125.04 279.30 570.82
Loan from Body Corporate 809.98 - - 809.98

Overdraft from bank 252.15 252.15
Trade payables 12.99 46.02 32.78 - - 91.80
Security deposits - - 60.79 - - 60.79
Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings 5.02 - - - - 5.02

Payable to a Related Party - - 26.65 - - 26.65
Other payables 33.87 - - - - 33.87

Total non-derivative liabilities 51.88 46.02 1,459.31 125.04 649.71 2,331.96

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

Amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investment,
deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company’s treasury team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire
process of market risk management.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As on the balance-sheet
date, the Company does not have foreign currency receivables or payables and is therefore not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or
receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not
material hence no additional provision considered.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company’s treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the working
capital requirements. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances along with liquid investments) on
the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary to take into account
the liquidity of the market in which the Company operates.

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
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(ii) Interest rate risk

42 Capital management

The gearing ratios were as
follows:

 (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

                             1,168.41                      2,057.02

4,231.89 4,661.73
27.61% 44.13%

43

A
 (Rs. in lakhs)

 YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2020

 YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2019

Contracted price 1,465.55 1,630.56
12.60 12.15

1,452.95 1,618.41

B

C  (Rs. in lakhs)

 YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2020

 YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2019

1,049.75 1,287.00
(1,049.75) (922.84)
1,098.09 685.59
1,098.08 1,049.75

44

45 Recent Accounting Pronouncements  - Standards issued but not yet effective

46

47

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year
Balance at the end of the year

There is no interest paid during the year and no principle and interest is outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on Balance sheet date.

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year

Changes in contract liabilities (fees received in advance) are as follows:

The accounts of certain trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and banks are, however, subject to formal confirmations or reconciliations and consequent
adjustments, if any. However, there is no indication of dispute on these accounts, other than those mentioned in the financial statements. The management does not expect any
material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Less: Returns, rebates, incentive and other similar allowances
Revenue recognised

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations, along with the
broad time band for the expected time to recognise those revenues, the Company has applied the practical expedient in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed
the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised corresponds to the
value transferred to customer typically involving time based and event based contracts.

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations is Rs. 1,098.08 lakhs, which is expected to be recognised as
revenue in the next year.

Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April
01, 2020.

Balance at the beginning of the year

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The Company’s Directors are identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the Company is primarily engaged in only one segment viz., ‘Educational
Services’ and that all operations are in India. Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. According to the
Company, interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. The Company is not significantly exposed to the interest rate risk, since the borrowings of the
Company are on Fixed interest rate basis.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to :
1. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares,
reduce debt or sell assets.

Net debt (Total  borrowings, including current maturities less cash & cash equivalent excluding Lease Liability under Ind
AS 116)
Total equity
Net debt to equity ratio
Loan covenants : The company intends to manage optimal gearing ratios.
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48 Interest in other entities
(a) Subsidiaries

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

82.42% 82.42%

(b) Associate

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

49

As % of
Consolidated net

assets

Amount
(Rs. In Lakh)

As % of Consolidated
profit/(loss) after tax

Amount
(Rs. In Lakh)

5.27%                                    223.12 128.45%                                (558.02)

94.73%                                 4,008.77 -28.45%                                 123.58

-                                            - -                                         -

100.00%                                 4,231.89 100.00%                                (434.44)

21.09% 982.98 -1.70% -44.11

78.91% 3678.75 105.72% 2743.97

-                                            - -4.02%                                (104.25)

100.00% 4661.73 100.00% 2595.61Total

(b) Associate                                VJTF
INFRASCHOOL SERVICES (Mumbai)
PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private
Limited)

(b) Subsidiary - Indian                   VJTF
BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

(a) Parent
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

(a) Parent
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2020

Net Assets i.e. Total assets minus Total
liabilities

As at 31st March, 2019

Share in Profit/(loss)
after Taxation and before other comprehensive

income

Total

(b) Associate                                VJTF
INFRASCHOOL SERVICES (Mumbai)
PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private
Limited)

Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary / Associates.

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private
Limited (formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private
Limited)

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited

(b) Subsidiary - Indian                   VJTF
BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

Ownership interest held by the group (%)

Place of business/ country of incorporation

India

Place of business/ country of incorporation

India

Ownership interest held by the group (%)

Name of entity

Name of entity

Name of the Enterprises

46.03% 46.03%
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50

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR  J. KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No.: 118769W

    Sd/-          Sd/-      Sd/- Sd/-
VAIBHAV PATODI DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN SHRUTI SHARMA
PARTNER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
Membership No. 420935 DIN No.00235276 DIN No.01142103 Membership No.A52723

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE  : 31st July, 2020

Previous years’ figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year.
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